

# **2001 Budget**

**Drafting file for:**  
**SSA1-SB55 (LRBs0142)**  
**&**  
**ASA1-SB55 (LRBs0149)**

The LFB / Joint Finance Superamendment  
(LRBb0708) merged with SB-55 (LRB-2402)  
to create the "P/1" version.

Part     **H**

✓

H JLD  
PJM

1 eligibility for the individual or family under s. 49.19 or 49.77, or for the aged, blind,  
2 or disabled under 42 USC 1381 to 1385, and “income” does not include earned or  
3 unearned income that would be excluded in determining eligibility for the individual  
4 or family under s. 49.19 or 49.77, or for the aged, blind, or disabled individual under  
5 42 USC 1381 to 1385.”

---

6 ✓ **\*b0614/1.1\* 834.** Page 835, line 11: delete lines 11 and 12 and substitute  
7 “cancer. (1) In this section:”.

8 ✓ **\*b0614/1.2\* 835.** Page 835, line 13: before that line insert:

9 “(a) “County department” means a county department under s. 46.215, 46.22,  
10 or 46.23.

11 (b) “Qualified entity” has the meaning given in 42 USC 1396r-1b (b) (2).

12 (2) A woman is eligible for medical assistance as provided under sub. (5) if, after  
13 applying to the department or a county department, the department or a county  
14 department determines that she meets all of the following requirements:”.

15 **\*b0614/1.3\* 836.** Page 835, line 22: after that line insert:

16 “(3) Prior to applying to the department or a county department for medical  
17 assistance, a woman is eligible for medical assistance as provided under sub. (5)  
18 beginning on the date on which a qualified entity determines, on the basis of  
19 preliminary information, that the woman meets the requirements specified in sub.  
20 (2) and ending on one of the following dates:

21 (a) If the woman applies to the department or a county department for medical  
22 assistance within the time limit required under sub. (4), the day on which the  
23 department or county department determines whether the woman meets the  
24 requirements under sub. (2).

1 (b) If the woman does not apply to the department or county department for  
2 medical assistance within the time limit required under sub. (4), the last day of the  
3 month following the month in which the qualified entity determines that the woman  
4 is eligible for medical assistance.

5 (4) A woman who a qualified entity determines under sub. (3) is eligible for  
6 medical assistance shall apply to the department or county department no later than  
7 the last day of the month following the month in which the qualified entity  
8 determines that the woman is eligible for medical assistance.” ✓

9 \*b0614/1.4\* **837**. Page 835, line 23: delete “(2)” and substitute “(5)”. ✓ ✓

10 \*b0614/1.5\* **838**. Page 836, line 2: delete “sub. (1)” and substitute “sub. (2)”. ✓ ✓

11 \*b0614/1.6\* **839**. Page 836, line 3: before that line insert: ✓

12 “(6) A qualified entity that determines under sub. (3) that a woman is eligible  
13 for medical assistance as provided under sub. (5) shall do all of the following:

14 (a) Notify the department of the determination no later than 5 days after the  
15 date on which the determination is made.

16 (b) Inform the woman at the of time the determination that she is required to  
17 apply to the department or a county department for medical assistance no later than  
18 the last day of the month following the month in which the qualified entity  
19 determines that the woman is eligible for medical assistance.

20 (7) The department shall provide qualified entities with application forms for  
21 medical assistance and information on how to assist women in completing the form.” ✓

22 \*b0607/1.4\* **840**. Page 836, line 3: delete the material beginning with that  
23 line and ending with page 839, line 11. ✓ ✓



1           **\*b0611/1.1\* SECTION 1836r.** 49.665 (4) (at) 1. c. of the statutes is created to  
2 read:

3           49.665 (4) (at) 1. c. Notwithstanding s. 20.001 (3) (b), if, after reviewing the plan  
4 submitted under subd. 1. b., the joint committee on finance determines that the  
5 amounts appropriated under s. 20.435 (4) (bc), (jz), (p), and (w) are insufficient to  
6 accommodate the projected enrollment levels, the committee may transfer  
7 appropriated moneys from the general purpose revenue appropriation account of any  
8 state agency, as defined in s. 20.001 (1), other than a sum sufficient appropriation  
9 account, to the appropriation account under s. 20.435 (4) (bc) to supplement the  
10 health care program under this section if the committee finds that the transfer will  
11 eliminate unnecessary duplication of functions, result in more efficient and effective  
12 methods for performing programs or more effectively carry out legislative intent, and  
13 that legislative intent will not be changed by the transfer.” ✓ ✓

14           **\*b0601/5.4\* 845.** Page 842, line 4: delete “(w)” and substitute “(x)”. ✓ ✓

15           **\*b0385/3.2\* 846.** Page 842, line 6: after that line insert:

16           **\*b0385/3.2\* “SECTION 1837p.** 49.68 (3) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:  
17           49.68 (3) (b) The From the appropriation accounts under ss. 20.435 (4) (e) and  
18 (je), the state shall pay the cost of medical treatment required as a direct result of  
19 chronic renal disease of certified patients from the date of certification, including the  
20 cost of administering recombinant human erythropoietin to appropriate patients,  
21 whether the treatment is rendered in an approved facility in the state or in a dialysis  
22 or transplantation center which is approved as such by a contiguous state, subject  
23 to the conditions specified under par. (d). Approved facilities may include a hospital  
24 in-center dialysis unit or a nonhospital dialysis center which is closely affiliated with

1 a home dialysis program supervised by an approved facility. Aid shall also be  
2 provided for all reasonable expenses incurred by a potential living-related donor,  
3 including evaluation, hospitalization, surgical costs and postoperative follow-up to  
4 the extent that these costs are not reimbursable under the federal medicare program  
5 or other insurance. In addition, all expenses incurred in the procurement,  
6 transportation and preservation of cadaveric donor kidneys shall be covered to the  
7 extent that these costs are not otherwise reimbursable. All donor-related costs are  
8 chargeable to the recipient and reimbursable under this subsection.

9 \*b0385/3.2\* SECTION 1837q. 49.683 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:  
10 49.683 (2) Approved costs for medical care under sub. (1) shall be paid from the  
11 appropriation accounts under s. 20.435 (4) (e) and (je).

12 \*b0385/3.2\* SECTION 1837r. 49.685 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:  
13 49.685 (2) ASSISTANCE PROGRAM. ~~The~~ From the appropriation accounts under  
14 s. 20.435 (4) (e) and (je), the department shall establish a program of financial  
15 assistance to persons suffering from hemophilia and other related congenital  
16 bleeding disorders. The program shall assist such persons to purchase the blood  
17 derivatives and supplies necessary for home care. The program shall be  
18 administered through the comprehensive hemophilia treatment centers.

19 \*b0385/3.2\* SECTION 1837s. 49.687 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:  
20 49.687 (title) ~~Disease aids; patient financial and liability requirements;~~  
21 rebate agreements. ✓ ✓

22 \*b0385/3.3\* 847. Page 842, line 12: after “(e)” insert “and (je)”. ✓ ✓

23 \*b0385/3.4\* 848. Page 842, line 13: delete lines 13 to 15 and substitute  
24 “department shall revise the sliding scale for patient liability by January 1, 1994,

1 and shall, every 3 years thereafter by January 1, review and, if necessary, revise the  
2 sliding scale.”. ✓ ✓

3 \*b0385/3.5\* **849.** Page 842, line 15: after that line insert:

4 \*b0385/3.5\* “SECTION 1838c. 49.687 (3) of the statutes is created to read:

5 49.687 (3) The department or an entity with which the department contracts  
6 shall provide to a drug manufacturer that sells drugs for prescribed use in this state  
7 documents designed for use by the manufacturer in entering into a rebate agreement  
8 with the department or entity that is modeled on the rebate agreement specified  
9 under 42 USC 1396r–8. The department or entity may enter into a rebate agreement  
10 under this subsection that shall include all of the following as requirements:

11 (a) That, as a condition of coverage for prescription drugs of a manufacturer  
12 under s. 49.68, 49.683, or 49.685, the manufacturer shall make rebate payments for  
13 each prescription drug of the manufacturer that is prescribed for and purchased by  
14 persons who meet eligibility criteria under s. 49.68, 49.683, or 49.685, to the state  
15 treasurer to be credited to the appropriation under s. 20.435 (4) (je), each calendar  
16 quarter or according to a schedule established by the department.

17 (b) That the amount of the rebate payment shall be determined by a method  
18 specified in 42 USC 1396r–8 (c), except that, if the average manufacturer price for  
19 a prescription drug exceeds the average manufacturer price of the drug as of  
20 December 31, 2000, or the first calendar quarter after the day on which the drug was  
21 first available, as adjusted for inflation, the rebate amount shall increase by the  
22 amount of the difference.”. ✓ ✓

23 \*b0429/2.7\* **850.** Page 842, line 15: after that line insert:

24 \*b0429/2.7\* “SECTION 1838t. 49.85 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

1           49.85 (1) ~~COUNTY DEPARTMENT~~ DEPARTMENT NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENT. If a  
2 county department under s. 46.215, 46.22, or 46.23, ~~or~~ a governing body of a federally  
3 recognized American Indian tribe or band ~~or a Wisconsin works agency~~ determines  
4 that the department of health and family services may recover an amount under s.  
5 49.497 or that the department of workforce development may recover an amount  
6 under s. 49.125, 49.161, or 49.195 (3), the county department or governing body shall  
7 notify the affected department of the determination. If a Wisconsin works agency  
8 determines that the department of workforce development may recover an amount  
9 under s. 49.161 or 49.195 (3), the Wisconsin works agency shall notify the  
10 department of workforce development of the determination.” ✓ ✓

11           **\*b0625/3.22\* 851.** Page 842, line 15: after that line insert:

12           **\*b0625/3.22\* “SECTION 1838sb.** 49.79 (2) (b) of the statutes is created to read:  
13           49.79 (2) (b) An individual who fails to comply with the work requirements of  
14 the employment and training program under s. 49.13 (2) (a) is ineligible to  
15 participate in the food stamp program as specified under s. 49.13 (3).

16           **\*b0625/3.22\* SECTION 1838t.** 49.79 (9) of the statutes is created to read:

17           49.79 (9) FRAUD INVESTIGATIONS AND ERROR REDUCTION ACTIVITIES. If the  
18 department does not contract with the department of workforce development under  
19 s. 49.197 (5), the department shall establish and administer a program to investigate  
20 fraudulent activity on the part of recipients of food stamps and to reduce errors in  
21 the payments of benefits under the food stamp program.

22           **\*b0625/3.22\* SECTION 1838td.** 49.79 (10) of the statutes is created to read:

1           49.79 (10) CONTRACT FOR EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING PROGRAM. The department  
2 shall contract with the department of workforce development to administer the  
3 employment and training program under s. 49.13.

4           **\*b0625/3.22\* SECTION 1838v.** 49.85 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

5           49.85 (1) COUNTY DEPARTMENT NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENT. If a county  
6 department under s. 46.215, 46.22 or 46.23, a governing body of a federally  
7 recognized American Indian tribe or band or a Wisconsin works agency determines  
8 that the department of health and family services may recover an amount under s.  
9 49.497 or that the department of workforce development may recover an amount  
10 under s. ~~49.125~~, 49.161 ~~or~~, 49.195 (3), or 49.793, the county department or governing  
11 body shall notify the affected department of the determination.” ✓✓

12           **\*b0604/1.6\* 852.** Page 842, line 16: delete the material beginning with that  
13 line and ending with page 843, line 4.✓

14           **\*b0625/3.23\* 853.** Page 843, line 4: after that line insert:

15           **\*b0625/3.23\* “SECTION 1839m.** 49.85 (2) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

16           49.85 (2) (b) At least annually, the department of workforce development shall  
17 certify to the department of revenue the amounts that, based on the notifications  
18 received under sub. (1) and on other information received by the department of  
19 workforce development, the department of workforce development has determined  
20 that it may recover under ss. ~~49.125~~, 49.161 ~~and~~, 49.195 (3), and 49.793, except that  
21 the department of workforce development may not certify an amount under this  
22 subsection unless it has met the notice requirements under sub. (3) and unless its  
23 determination has either not been appealed or is no longer under appeal.” ✓✓

24           **\*b0625/3.24\* 854.** Page 843, line 4: after that line insert:

1           **\*b0625/3.24\*** “SECTION 1840g. 49.85 (3) (b) 1. of the statutes is amended to  
2 read:

3           49.85 (3) (b) 1. Inform the person that the department of workforce  
4 development intends to certify to the department of revenue an amount that the  
5 department of workforce development has determined to be due under s. ~~49.125,~~  
6 ~~49.161 or, 49.195 (3), or 49.793,~~ for setoff from any state tax refund that may be due  
7 the person.”. ✓ ✓

8           **\*b0550/1.5\* 855.** Page 844, line 23: delete lines 23 to 25 and substitute  
9 “future support or maintenance. ~~An obligor may, within 20 days of receiving notice~~  
10 ~~that the amount certified shall be withheld from his or her federal tax refund or~~  
11 ~~credit, request a hearing under this subsection.”. ✓ ✓~~

12           **\*b0550/1.6\* 856.** Page 845, line 1: delete that line and substitute:

13           **\*b0550/1.6\*** “SECTION 1844b. 49.855 (4) of the statutes is renumbered 49.855  
14 (4) (a) and amended to read:”. ✓ ✓

15           **\*b0550/1.7\* 857.** Page 845, line 2: after “(4)” insert “(a)”. ✓ ✓

16           **\*b0550/1.8\* 858.** Page 845, line 3: delete “or federal” and substitute “~~or~~  
17 federal”. ✓

18           **\*b0550/1.9\* 859.** Page 845, line 7: delete “or federal”. ✓

19           **\*b0550/1.10\* 860.** Page 845, line 13: after that line insert:

20           **\*b0550/1.10\*** “SECTION 1844c. 49.855 (4) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

21           49.855 (4) (b) The department of administration shall send the portion of any  
22 federal tax refunds or credits received from the internal revenue service that was  
23 withheld for delinquent child or family support or maintenance or past support,  
24 medical expenses, or birth expenses to the department of workforce development or

1 its designee for deposit in the support collections trust fund under s. 25.68 and shall  
2 send the portion of any federal tax refunds or credits received from the internal  
3 revenue service that was withheld for delinquent receiving and disbursing fees to the  
4 department of workforce development or its designee for deposit in the appropriation  
5 account under s. 20.445 (3) (ja).". ✓ ✓

6 \*b0148/1.1\* **861.** Page 847, line 1: delete lines 1 to 7. ✓ ✓

7 \*b0061/2.2\* **862.** Page 847, line 8: delete the material beginning with that  
8 line and ending with page 860, line 2. ✓ ✓

9 \*b0604/1.7\* **863.** Page 860, line 3: delete lines 3 to 16. ✓ ✓

10 \*b0061/2.3\* **864.** Page 860, line 17: delete the material beginning with that  
11 line and ending with page 861, line 13. ✓ ✓

12 \*b0070/1.11\* **865.** Page 861, line 14: delete lines 14 to 21. ✓ ✓

13 \*b0070/1.12\* **866.** Page 862, line 4: delete lines 4 to 15. ✓ ✓

14 \*b0073/2.6\* **867.** Page 862, line 16: delete lines 16 to 20. ✓ ✓

15 \*b0061/2.4\* **868.** Page 862, line 21: delete lines 21 to 24. ✓ ✓

16 \*b0077/1.2\* **869.** Page 862, line 25: delete the material beginning with that  
17 line and ending with page 863, line 6. ✓ ✓

18 \*b0070/1.13\* **870.** Page 863, line 7: delete lines 7 to 14. ✓ ✓

19 \*b0070/1.14\* **871.** Page 863, line 22: delete the material beginning with that  
20 line and ending with page 864, line 9. ✓ ✓

21 \*b0073/2.7\* **872.** Page 864, line 10: delete lines 10 to 15. ✓ ✓

22 \*b0061/2.5\* **873.** Page 864, line 16: delete lines 16 to 18. ✓ ✓

- 1           **\*b0077/1.3\* 874.** Page 864, line 17: delete “, as affected by 2001 Wisconsin  
2           Act ....”.
- 3           **\*b0077/1.4\* 875.** Page 864, line 18: delete “(this act),”.
- 4           **\*b0077/1.5\* 876.** Page 864, line 19: delete lines 19 to 22. ✓ ✓
- 5           **\*b0070/1.15\* 877.** Page 864, line 23: delete the material beginning with that  
6           line and ending with page 865, line 5. ✓ ✓
- 7           **\*b0070/1.16\* 878.** Page 865, line 13: delete lines 13 to 24. ✓ ✓
- 8           **\*b0073/2.8\* 879.** Page 865, line 25: delete the material beginning with that  
9           line and ending with page 866, line 5. ✓ ✓
- 10          **\*b0077/1.6\* 880.** Page 866, line 6: delete lines 6 to 14. ✓ ✓
- 11          **\*b0061/2.6\* 881.** Page 866, line 15: delete lines 15 and 16. ✓ ✓
- 12          **\*b0077/1.9\* 882.** Page 866, line 17: delete lines 17 to 20. ✓ ✓
- 13          **\*b0070/1.17\* 883.** Page 866, line 21: delete the material beginning with that  
14          line and ending with page 867, line 14. ✓ ✓
- 15          **\*b0073/2.9\* 884.** Page 867, line 15: delete lines 15 to 22. ✓ ✓
- 16          **\*b0061/2.7\* 885.** Page 867, line 23: delete the material beginning with that  
17          line and ending with page 872, line 21. ✓ ✓
- 18          **\*b0073/2.10\* 886.** Page 873, line 1: delete “(a)”. ✓ ✓
- 19          **\*b0070/1.18\* 887.** Page 873, line 2: delete that line and substitute  
20          “individual, a functional and financial screen”. ✓ ✓
- 21          **\*b0070/1.19\* 888.** Page 873, line 3: delete “screening”. ✓ ✓

1           **\*b0070/1.20\* 889.** Page 873, line 6: delete lines 6 and 7 and substitute “to the  
2 admission may waive the requirement for a financial screen under s. 46.283 (4) (g),  
3 unless the incapacitated”. <sup>no</sup> ✓

4           **\*b0061/2.8\* 890.** Page 873, line 9: delete the material beginning with that  
5 line and ending with page 874, line 8. ✓

6           **\*b0068/1.3\* 891.** Page 874, line 10: delete lines 10 to 17 and substitute:  
7 “50.36 (2) The department shall promulgate rules that require that a hospital,  
8 before discharging a patient who is aged 65 or older or who has developmental  
9 disability or physical disability and whose disability or condition requires long-term  
10 care that is expected to last at least 90 days, refer the patient to the resource center  
11 under s. 46.283. The rules shall specify that this requirement applies only if the”. ✓ ✓

12           **\*b0073/2.11\* 892.** Page 874, line 18: delete “(a)”. ✓ ✓

13           **\*b0061/2.9\* 893.** Page 874, line 21: delete lines 21 to 23. ✓ ✓

14           **\*b0068/1.4\* 894.** Page 874, line 24: delete that line. ✓ ✓

15           **\*b0061/2.10\* 895.** Page 874, line 25: delete the material beginning with that  
16 line and ending with page 875, line 2. ✓ ✓

17           **\*b0071/1.1\* 896.** Page 875, line 3: delete lines 3 to 6. ✓ ✓

18           **\*b0061/2.11\* 897.** Page 875, line 7: delete the material beginning with that  
19 line and ending with page 879, line 13. ✓ ✓

20           **\*b0358/1.5\* 898.** Page 879, line 14: delete lines 14 to 19 and substitute:

21           **\*b0358/1.5\* “SECTION 1955b.** 51.02 (1) (e) of the statutes is repealed.”. ✓

22           **\*b0061/2.12\* 899.** Page 879, line 20: delete the material beginning with that  
23 line and ending with page 886, line 6. ✓ ✓

1           **\*b0419/1.1\* 900.** Page 887, line 3: delete “physical therapy” and substitute  
2 “therapy services”. ✓ ✓

3           **\*b0061/2.13\* 901.** Page 888, line 9: delete the material beginning with that  
4 line and ending with page 889, line 6. ✓ ✓

5           **\*b0420/1.1\* 902.** Page 890, line 24: delete “county resident” and substitute  
6 “person who is ordered by a court located in that county to be”. ✓ ✓

7           **\*b0323/3.13\* 903.** Page 891, line 3: after that line insert:

8           **\*b0323/3.13\* SECTION 1971p.** 51.423 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           51.423 (1) The department shall fund, within the limits of the department’s  
10 allocation for mental health services under s. 20.435 (3) (o) and (7) (b), ~~(kw)~~ and (o)  
11 and subject to this section, services for mental illness, developmental disability,  
12 alcoholism, and drug abuse to meet standards of service quality and accessibility.  
13 The department’s primary responsibility is to guarantee that county departments  
14 established under either s. 51.42 or 51.437 receive a reasonably uniform minimum  
15 level of funding and its secondary responsibility is to fund programs which meet  
16 exceptional community needs or provide specialized or innovative services. Moneys  
17 appropriated under s. 20.435 (7) (b) and earmarked by the department for mental  
18 health services under s. 20.435 (7) (o) shall be allocated by the department to county  
19 departments under s. 51.42 or 51.437 in the manner set forth in this section.

20           **\*b0323/3.13\* SECTION 1971r.** 51.423 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

21           51.423 (2) From the appropriations under s. 20.435 (3) (o) and (7) (b), ~~(kw)~~ and  
22 (o), the department shall distribute the funding for services provided or purchased  
23 by county departments under s. 46.23, 51.42, or 51.437 to such county departments  
24 as provided under s. 46.40. County matching funds are required for the distributions

1 under s. 46.40 (2) and (9) (b). Each county's required match for the distributions  
2 under s. 46.40 (2) for a year equals 9.89% of the total of the county's distributions  
3 under s. 46.40 (2) for that year for which matching funds are required plus the  
4 amount the county was required by s. 46.26 (2) (c), 1985 stats., to spend for juvenile  
5 delinquency-related services from its distribution for 1987. Each county's required  
6 match for the distribution under s. 46.40 (9) (b) for a year equals 9.89% of that  
7 county's amounts described in s. 46.40 (9) (a) (intro.) for that year. Matching funds  
8 may be from county tax levies, federal and state revenue sharing funds, or private  
9 donations to the counties that meet the requirements specified in sub. (5). Private  
10 donations may not exceed 25% of the total county match. If the county match is less  
11 than the amount required to generate the full amount of state and federal funds  
12 distributed for this period, the decrease in the amount of state and federal funds  
13 equals the difference between the required and the actual amount of county  
14 matching funds." ✓ ✓

15 \*b0358/1.6\* **904.** Page 891, line 10: delete the material beginning with that  
16 line and ending with page 893, line 5, and substitute:

17 \*b0358/1.6\* "SECTION 1974m. 51.437 (14p) of the statutes is repealed.

18 \*b0358/1.6\* SECTION 1981b. 51.437 (14r) (a) 2. (intro.) of the statutes is  
19 amended to read:

20 51.437 (14r) (a) 2. (intro.) Perform the following responsibilities related to the  
21 state plan, for the delivery of services, that is required under 42 USC 6022, including  
22 the construction of facilities." ✓ ✓

23 \*b0328/3.2\* **905.** Page 893, line 5: after that line insert:

24 \*b0328/3.2\* "SECTION 1982r. 51.44 (3) (c) of the statutes is created to read:

1           51.44 (3) (c) No county may contribute less funding for early intervention  
2 services under this section than the county contributed for early intervention  
3 services in 1999, except that, for a county that demonstrated extraordinary effort in  
4 1999, the department may waive this requirement and establish with the county a  
5 lesser required contribution.” ✓✓

6           **\*b0061/2.14\* 906.** Page 893, line 6: delete lines 6 to 15. ✓✓

7           **\*b0358/1.7\* 907.** Page 893, line 16: delete lines 16 to 21. ✓✓

8           **\*b0061/2.15\* 908.** Page 893, line 22: delete the material beginning with that  
9 line and ending with page 895, line 7. ✓✓

10          **\*b0054/1.5\* 909.** Page 895, line 8: delete lines 8 to 20. ✓✓

11          **\*b0156/1.5\* 910.** Page 895, line 21: delete lines 21 to 24. ✓✓

12          **\*b0156/1.6\* 911.** Page 896, line 1: delete lines 1 and 2. ✓✓

13          **\*b0627/2.7\* 912.** Page 896, line 6: delete the material beginning with “the  
14 amounts” and ending with “assessment,” on line 7. ✓✓

15          **\*b0336/2.4\* 913.** Page 896, line 18: after “children,” insert “the amounts  
16 required by s. 349.04 for the truck driver education assessment.” ✓✓

17          **\*b0457/2.1\* 914.** Page 897, line 6: after that line insert: ✓

18          **\*b0457/2.1\* “SECTION 3996m.** 59.34 (1) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

19           59.34 (1) (a) Participate in inquest proceedings when required by law, except  
20 that in any county with a population of 500,000 or more and all counties ~~which~~ that  
21 have instituted the medical examiner system this duty and the powers incident  
22 thereto shall be vested exclusively in the office of the medical examiner. Except as  
23 provided under s. 59.38 (5), the board shall appoint the medical examiner. The office

1 may be occupied on a full-time or part-time basis, and the officeholder shall be paid  
2 compensation as the board by ordinance provides. The duties performed by the  
3 county coroner and not vested in the medical examiner shall be performed by the  
4 clerk. The medical examiner may appoint such assistants as the board authorizes.  
5 Whenever requested by the court, attorney general, or district attorney, the medical  
6 examiner shall testify to facts and conclusions disclosed by autopsies performed by  
7 him or her, at his or her direction or in his or her presence; shall make physical  
8 examinations and tests incident to any matter of a criminal nature up for  
9 consideration before either the court, attorney general, or district attorney upon  
10 request; shall testify as an expert for either the court or the state in all matters where  
11 the examinations or tests have been made; and shall perform such other duties of a  
12 pathological or medicolegal nature as may be required.” ✓ ✓

13 \*b0595/4.2\* **915.** Page 897, line 6: after that line insert:

14 \*b0595/4.2\* “SECTION 1996f. 59.25 (3) (j) of the statutes is renumbered 59.25  
15 (3) (j) 1. and amended to read:

16 59.25 (3) (j) 1. Retain 10% for fees in receiving and paying into the state  
17 treasury all money received by the treasurer for the state for fines and penalties,  
18 ~~except that 50% of the state forfeitures, fines and penalties under chs. 341 to 347, 349~~  
19 ~~and 351 shall be retained as fees as provided in subd. 2.,~~ and retain the other fees  
20 for receiving and paying money into the state treasury that are prescribed by law.

21 \*b0595/4.2\* SECTION 1996h. 59.25 (3) (j) 2. of the statutes is created to read:

22 59.25 (3) (j) 2. Retain 50% as fees for receiving and paying into the state  
23 treasury all money received by the treasurer for the state for state forfeitures, fines,  
24 and penalties under chs. 341 to 347, 349, and 351, unless, during that state fiscal

1 year, the treasurer has already retained under this subdivision an amount equal to  
2 the amount that the treasurer retained under s. 59.25 (3) (j), 1999 stats., as fees from  
3 state forfeitures, fines, and penalties under chs. 341 to 347, 349, and 351 in the  
4 2000–01 state fiscal year.

5 **\*b0595/4.2\* SECTION 1996j.** 59.25 (3) (jm) of the statutes is created to read:

6 59.25 (3) (jm) Forward to the state treasurer all money received by the  
7 treasurer for the state for state forfeitures, fines, and penalties under chs. 341 to 347,  
8 349, and 351 if, during that state fiscal year, the treasurer has already retained  
9 under par. (j) 2. an amount equal to the amount that the treasurer retained under  
10 s. 59.25 (3) (j), 1999 stats., as fees from state forfeitures, fines, and penalties under  
11 chs. 341 to 347, 349, and 351 in the 2000–01 state fiscal year. The state treasurer  
12 shall deposit 50% of the amounts received under this paragraph in the general fund  
13 and shall credit them to the appropriation account under s. 20.475 (1) (g). ✓ ✓

14 **\*b0627/2.8\* 916.** Page 897, line 13: delete the material beginning with “the  
15 amounts” and ending with “assessment.” on line 14. ✓ ✓

16 **\*b0336/2.5\* 917.** Page 897, line 25: after “children,” insert “the amounts  
17 required by s. 349.04 for the truck driver education assessment.” ✓ ✓

18 **\*b0670/3.20\* 918.** Page 898, line 11: delete lines 11 to 21 and substitute:

19 **\*b0670/3.20\* \*SECTION 1999m.** 59.43 (2) (ag) 1. of the statutes is amended to  
20 read:

21 59.43 (2) (ag) 1. ~~After June 30, 1991, and subject~~ Subject to s. 59.72 (5), for  
22 recording any instrument entitled to be recorded in the office of the register of deeds,  
23 ~~\$10~~ \$11 for the first page and \$2 for each additional page, except that no fee may be

1 collected for recording a change of address that is exempt from a filing fee under s.  
2 185.83 (1) (b).

3 \*b0670/3.20\* SECTION 1999n. 59.43 (2) (ag) 1. of the statutes, as affected by  
4 2001 Wisconsin Act .... (this act), is amended to read:

5 59.43 (2) (ag) 1. ~~Subject to s. 59.72 (5), for~~ For recording any instrument  
6 entitled to be recorded in the office of the register of deeds, \$11 for the first page and  
7 \$2 for each additional page, except that no fee may be collected for recording a change  
8 of address that is exempt from a filing fee under s. 185.83 (1) (b). ✓ ✓

9 \*b0670/3.21\* 919. Page 899, line 1: delete lines 1 to 5 and substitute:

10 \*b0670/3.21\* SECTION 2001m. 59.43 (2) (e) of the statutes is amended to read:

11 59.43 (2) (e) ~~After June 30, 1991, and subject~~ Subject to s. 59.72 (5), for filing  
12 any instrument which is entitled to be filed in the office of register of deeds and for  
13 which no other specific fee is specified, \$10 \$11 for the first page and \$2 for each  
14 additional page.

15 \*b0670/3.21\* SECTION 2001n. 59.43 (2) (e) of the statutes, as affected by 2001  
16 Wisconsin Act .... (this act), is amended to read:

17 59.43 (2) (e) ~~Subject to s. 59.72 (5), for~~ For filing any instrument which is  
18 entitled to be filed in the office of register of deeds and for which no other specific fee  
19 is specified, \$11 for the first page and \$2 for each additional page." ✓

20 \*b0624/1.1\* 920. Page 899, line 5: after that line insert:

21 \*b0624/1.1\* SECTION 2001m. 59.52 (11) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

22 59.52 (11) (c) *Employee insurance.* Provide for individual or group hospital,  
23 surgical and life insurance for county officers and employees and for payment of  
24 premiums for such officers and employees. ~~In addition, a~~ A county with at least 100

1 employees may elect to provide health care benefits on a self-insured basis to its  
 2 officers and employees, ~~and any 2 or more counties which together have at least 100~~  
 3 ~~employees may jointly provide health care benefits on a self-insured basis to officers~~  
 4 ~~and employees of the counties.~~ A county and one or more cities, villages, towns, or  
 5 other counties, that together have at least 100 employees, may jointly provide health  
 6 care benefits to their officers and employees on a self-insured basis. <sup>plain</sup> Counties which  
 7 elect to provide health care benefits on a self-insured basis to their officers and  
 8 employees shall be subject to the requirements set forth under s. 120.13 (2) (c) to (e)  
 9 and (g). ✓✓

10 \*b0384/1.5\* **921.** Page 899, line 6: delete lines 6 to 9. ✓

11 \*b0485/1.1\* **922.** Page 899, line 9: after that line insert:

12 \*b0485/1.1\* **SECTION 2002s.** 59.69 (4e) of the statutes is renumbered 59.69  
 13 (4e) (intro.) and amended to read:

14 59.69 (4e) (intro.) MIGRANT LABOR CAMPS. The board may not enact an ordinance  
 15 or adopt a resolution that interferes with any of the following:

16 (a) Any repair or expansion of migrant labor camps, as defined in s. 103.90 (3),  
 17 ~~that are in existence on May 12, 1992, if the repair or expansion is required by an~~  
 18 ~~administrative rule that is promulgated by the department of workforce~~  
 19 ~~development under ss. 103.90 to 103.97.~~ An ordinance or resolution of the county  
 20 ~~that is in effect on May 12, 1992, and that is in effect on the effective date of this~~  
 21 ~~paragraph .... [revisor inserts date], and that interferes with any construction,~~  
 22 ~~repair, or expansion of existing migrant labor camps that is required by such an~~  
 23 ~~administrative rule is void.~~

24 \*b0485/1.1\* **SECTION 2002t.** 59.69 (4e) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

1           59.69 (4e) (b) The construction of new migrant labor camps, as defined in s.  
2           103.90 (3), that are built on or after the effective date of this paragraph .... [revisor  
3           inserts date], on property that is adjacent to a food processing plant, as defined in s.  
4           100.03 (1) (q), or on property owned by a producer of vegetables, as defined in s.  
5           100.03 (1) (zs), if the camp is located on or contiguous to property on which vegetables  
6           are produced or adjacent to land on which the producer resides.”. ✓ ✓

7           **\*b0635/2.1\* 923.** Page 899, line 9: after that line insert:

8           **\*b0635/2.1\* “SECTION 2002r.** 59.60 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

9           59.60 (1) APPLICATION. The provisions of this section shall apply to all counties  
10          with a population of 500,000 or more. Any Except as provided in sub. (13), any county  
11          with a county executive or county administrator may elect to be subject to the  
12          provisions of this section.

13          **\*b0635/2.1\* SECTION 2002s.** 59.60 (5) (g) of the statutes is amended to read:

14          59.60 (5) (g) A complete summary of all the budget estimates and a statement  
15          of the property tax levy required if funds were appropriated on the basis of these  
16          estimates. In determining the property tax levy required, the director shall deduct  
17          from the total estimated expenditures the estimated amount of revenue from sources  
18          other than the property tax levy and shall deduct the amount of any surplus at the  
19          close of the preceding fiscal year not yet appropriated. The board, by two-thirds vote,  
20          may adopt a resolution before the adoption of the tax levy authorizing the use of the  
21          surplus fund in whole or in part as a sinking fund for the redemption or repurchase  
22          of bonds or to provide funds for emergency needs under sub. (9), but for no other  
23          purposes, except as provided in sub. (13).

24          **\*b0635/2.1\* SECTION 2002t.** 59.60 (13) of the statutes is created to read:

1           59.60 (13) TAX STABILIZATION FUND. (a) Notwithstanding sub. (1), only a county  
2 with a population of at least 500,000 may create a tax stabilization fund under this  
3 subsection.

4           (b) The board of a county described in par. (a) may enact an ordinance creating  
5 a tax stabilization fund in the county. If such fund is created under this paragraph,  
6 the following amounts, if positive, shall be deposited into the tax stabilization fund:

7           1. The amount determined by subtracting the estimated nonproperty tax  
8 revenues collected by the county in the prior year from the corresponding actual  
9 receipts for the prior year, as determined by the comptroller not later than April 15  
10 of each year.

11           2. The amount determined by subtracting total adjusted operating budget  
12 appropriations for the prior year from total expenditures, commitments, and  
13 reserves for the prior year, as determined by the comptroller not later than April 15  
14 of each year.

15           3. Any general surplus balance as of December 31 of the prior year, as  
16 determined by the comptroller not later than April 15 of each year.

17           4. Any amounts included in the county's property tax levy that are designated  
18 for deposit in the fund.

19           (c) Subject to par. (d), the board may withdraw amounts from the tax  
20 stabilization fund, by a three-quarters vote of the members-elect, or by a majority  
21 vote of the members-elect if the county's total levy rate, as defined in s. 59.605 (1)  
22 (g), is projected by the board to increase by more than 3% in the current fiscal year  
23 and the withdrawn funds would prevent an increase of more than 3%.

24           (d) The tax stabilization fund may not be used to offset any of the following:

1           1. Any deficit that occurs between the board's total estimated nonproperty tax  
2 revenue, and the total actual nonproperty tax revenue.

3           2. Any deficit that occurs between total appropriations and total expenditures.

4           (e) If the uncommitted balance in the tax stabilization fund exceeds 5% of the  
5 current year's budget that is under the board's control, as of June 1 of the current  
6 year, any amount that exceeds that 5% shall be used to reduce the county's next  
7 property tax levy." ✓ ✓

8           **\*b0670/3.22\* 924.** Page 899, line 10: delete the material beginning with that  
9 line and ending with page 900, line 25, and substitute:

10           **\*b0670/3.22\* "SECTION 2003c.** 59.72 (3) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to  
11 read:

12           59.72 (3) LAND INFORMATION OFFICE. The board may establish a county land  
13 information office or may direct that the functions and duties of the office be  
14 performed by an existing department, board, commission, agency, institution,  
15 authority, or office. ~~The~~ If the board establishes a county land information office, the  
16 office shall:

17           **\*b0670/3.22\* SECTION 2003e.** 59.72 (5) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

18           59.72 (5) (a) Before the 16th day of each month a register of deeds shall submit  
19 to the land information board ~~\$6~~ \$7 from the fee for recording the first page of each  
20 instrument that is recorded under s. 59.43 (2) (ag) 1. and (e), less any amount  
21 retained by the county under par. (b).

22           **\*b0670/3.22\* SECTION 2003g.** 59.72 (5) (b) (intro.) of the statutes is amended  
23 to read:

1           59.72 (5) (b) (intro.) A county may retain \$4 \$5 of the \$6 \$7 submitted under  
2 par. (a) from the fee for recording the first page of each instrument that is recorded  
3 under s. 59.43 (2) (ag) 1. and (e) if all of the following conditions are met:

4           **\*b0670/3.22\* SECTION 2003m.** 59.72 (5) (b) 3. of the statutes is amended to  
5 read:

6           59.72 (5) (b) 3. The county uses ~~the fees \$4 of each \$5 fee~~ retained under this  
7 paragraph to develop, implement, and maintain the countywide plan for land records  
8 modernization, and \$1 of each \$5 fee retained under this paragraph to develop and  
9 maintain a computerized indexing of the county's land information records relating  
10 to housing, including the housing element of the county's land use plan under s.  
11 66.1001 (2) (b), in a manner that would allow for greater public access via the  
12 Internet.". ✓ ✓

13           **\*b0624/1.2\* 925.** Page 900, line 25: after that line insert:

14           **\*b0624/1.2\* "SECTION 2003r.** 60.23 (25) of the statutes is amended to read:

15           60.23 (25) SELF-INSURED HEALTH PLANS. Provide health care benefits to its  
16 officers and employees on a self-insured basis ~~if the self-insured plan complies with~~  
17 ~~ss. 631.89, 631.90, 631.93 (2), 632.746 (10) (a) 2. and (b) 2., 632.747 (3), 632.85,~~  
18 ~~632.853, 632.855, 632.87 (4) and (5), 632.895 (9) and (11) to (14) and 632.896, subject~~  
19 ~~to s. 66.0137 (4).~~". ✓ ✓

20           **\*b0627/2.9\* 926.** Page 901, line 5: delete the material beginning with  
21 "757.05, a" and ending with "165.87 (1)." on line 6 and substitute "757.05,". ✓ ✓

22           **\*b0627/2.10\* 927.** Page 901, line 18: delete the material beginning with "the  
23 law" and ending with "165.87 (1)." on line 19. ✓ ✓

1           **\*b0627/2.11\* 928.** Page 902, line 1: delete the material beginning with “the  
2 law” and ending with “165.87 (1),” on line 2. ✓✓

3           **\*b0627/2.12\* 929.** Page 902, line 16: delete “law enforcement training fund  
4 assessment,”. ✓✓

5           **\*b0627/2.13\* 930.** Page 902, line 25: delete the material beginning with “the  
6 law” and ending with “165.87 (1),” on page 903, line 1. ✓✓

7           **\*b0627/2.14\* 931.** Page 903, line 12: delete the material beginning with “the  
8 law” and ending with “165.87 (1),” on line 13. ✓✓

9           **\*b0627/2.15\* 932.** Page 904, line 1: delete the material beginning with “a  
10 law” and ending with “fund assessment,” on line 24. ✓

11           **\*b0627/2.16\* 933.** Page 904, line 6: delete “law enforcement training fund  
12 assessment,”. ✓✓

13           **\*b0627/2.17\* 934.** Page 904, line 13: delete “law enforcement training fund  
14 assessment,”. ✓✓

15           **\*b0627/2.18\* 935.** Page 904, line 23: delete “law enforcement training fund  
16 assessment,”. ✓✓

17           **\*b0627/2.19\* 936.** Page 905, line 5: delete “law enforcement training fund  
18 assessment,”. ✓✓

19           **\*b0627/2.20\* 937.** Page 905, line 11: delete the material beginning with  
20 “law” and ending with “training assessment,” on line 12. ✓✓

21           **\*b0627/2.21\* 938.** Page 906, line 1: delete the material beginning with “the  
22 law” and ending with “165.87 (1),” on line 2. ✓✓

1           **\*b0627/2.22\* 939.** Page 906, line 17: delete the material beginning with  
2           “757.05, the” and ending with “165.87 (1),” on line 18 and substitute “757.05.” ✓✓

3           **\*b0336/2.6\* 940.** Page 906, line 20: after “(1),” insert “the truck driver  
4           education assessment imposed by s. 349.04.” ✓ ✓

5           **\*b0624/1.3\* 941.** Page 907, line 17: after that line insert:

6           **\*b0624/1.3\* SECTION 2014m.** 66.0137 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

7           66.0137 (1) DEFINITION. In this section, “local governmental unit” means a city,  
8           village, town, county, school district (as enumerated in s. 67.01 (5)), sewerage  
9           district, drainage district and, without limitation because of enumeration, any other  
10          political subdivision of the state ~~should be s. 345.05 (1) (e).~~

11          **\*b0624/1.3\* SECTION 2014n.** 66.0137 (4m) of the statutes is created to read:

12          66.0137 (4m) JOINT SELF-INSURED PLANS. (a) In this subsection, “political  
13          subdivision” means a city, village, town, or county.

14          (b) A political subdivision and one or more other political subdivisions, that  
15          together have at least 100 employees, may jointly provide health care benefits to  
16          their officers and employees on a self insured basis.

17          (c) Any plan under par. (b) shall comply with the provisions listed in sub. (4).” ✓✓

18          **\*b0639/1.1\* 942.** Page 908, line 18: after that line insert:

19          **\*b0639/1.1\* SECTION 2018p.** 66.0215 (title) of the statutes is amended to read:

20          **66.0215 (title) Incorporation of certain towns adjacent to 1st class**  
21          **cities or located in counties with a population greater than 400,000.**

22          **\*b0639/1.1\* SECTION 2018q.** 66.0215 (1) of the statutes is renumbered 66.0215

23          (1) (a).

24          **\*b0639/1.1\* SECTION 2018r.** 66.0215 (1) (b) of the statutes is created to read:

1           66.0215 (1) (b) If all of the following conditions are met, the procedure for  
2 becoming a 4th class city is initiated:

3           1. The resident population of the town exceeds 6,000 and the population of the  
4 county in which the town is located exceeds 400,000, as shown by the last federal  
5 census or by a census under sub. (2).

6           2. The town has an equalized valuation in excess of \$100,000,000.

7           3. An incorporation petition that requests submission of the question of  
8 incorporation to the electors of the town is signed by 100 or more persons, each an  
9 elector and taxpayer of the town.

10          4. The petition under subd. 3. contains the signatures of at least 50% of the  
11 owners of real estate in the town.

12          5. The petition under subd. 3. is filed with the town clerk.” ✓ ✓

13          **\*b0706/1.1\* 943.** Page 908, line 24: delete “may” and substitute “may shall”. ✓ ✓

14          **\*b0706/1.2\* 944.** Page 909, line 1: after “that” insert “states whether”. ✓ ✓

15          **\*b0706/1.3\* 945.** Page 909, line 2: after “annexation is” insert “in the public  
16 interest or is”. ✓

17          **\*b0706/1.4\* 946.** Page 909, line 3: after “annexation is” insert “in or”. ✓ ✓

18          **\*b0637/2.1\* 947.** Page 909, line 4: after that line insert:

19          **\*b0637/2.1\* “SECTION 2019m.** 66.0221 of the statutes is renumbered 66.0221  
20 (1) and amended to read:

21           66.0221 (1) Upon its own motion, a city or village, by a two-thirds vote of the  
22 entire membership of its governing body, may enact an ordinance annexing territory  
23 which comprises a portion of a town or towns and which was completely surrounded  
24 by territory of the city or village on December 2, 1973. The ordinance shall include

1 all surrounded town areas except those that are exempt by mutual agreement of all  
2 of the governing bodies involved. The annexation ordinance shall contain a legal  
3 description of the territory and the name of the town or towns from which the  
4 territory is detached. Upon enactment of the ordinance, the city or village clerk  
5 immediately shall file 6 certified copies of the ordinance in the office of the secretary  
6 of state, together with 6 copies of a scale map. The secretary of state shall forward  
7 2 copies of the ordinance and scale map to the department of transportation, one copy  
8 to the department of natural resources, one copy to the department of revenue and  
9 one copy to the department of administration. This ~~section~~ subsection does not apply  
10 if the town island was created only by the annexation of a railroad right-of-way or  
11 drainage ditch. This ~~section~~ subsection does not apply to land owned by a town  
12 government which has existing town government buildings located on the land. No  
13 town island may be annexed under this ~~section~~ subsection if the island consists of  
14 over 65 acres or contains over 100 residents. Section 66.0217 (11) applies to  
15 annexations under this ~~section~~. ~~After subsection.~~ Except as provided in sub. (2),  
16 after December 2, 1973, no city or village may, by annexation, create a town area  
17 which is completely surrounded by the city or village.

18 \*b0637/2.1\* SECTION 2019n. 66.0221 (2) of the statutes is created to read:

19 66.0221 (2) A city or village may, by annexation, create a town area that is  
20 completely surrounded by the city or village if one of the following applies:

21 (a) An intergovernmental cooperation agreement under s. 66.0301, to which  
22 the town and the annexing city or village are parties, applies to the territory that is  
23 annexed.

24 (b) A cooperative plan for boundary change under s. 66.0307, to which the town  
25 and the annexing city or village are parties, applies to the territory that is annexed.” ✓